Technical Proposal Evaluation (FORM II)

Key References:  Bidders should refer to the rest of the RfP including:

Annex 1 to RfP includes details of the organisational background, key GCF reference documents, GFMS background and objectives and GCF’s Digital Agenda and high-level ‘architecture’ of GCF’s solutions.  

Annex 2 to RfP includes the technical and financial forms to be used in the submission of the proposals.

Annex 3 to RfP includes the evaluation criteria including technical, financial and combined.  This includes details of the required comprehensive demos which form part of the technical evaluation of the proposed GFMS solution.  The requirement for the demos is also included in the timeline at Annex 6 to the RfP.
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2.1. General System Requirements

The general system requirements are for the solution as a whole and include overall usability/ease of use, security, internal controls and auditability.


	ID
	2.1 General System Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	General system requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must comply with all relevant international standards
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The User Interface should require little or no training
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The User Interface should be browser based
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide meaningful prompts and error messages which can be turned on/off by users
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide a Common User Interface which has the same “look and feel” for all modules within the total system 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should use a consistent navigation and function format throughout, incorporating the consistent use of menus, function keys, user prompts (at the field, screen, and transaction level), system output and user documentation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should enable users to define the positioning of fields in screen layouts and determine whether or not any user-defined fields should be included
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should minimise screen paging through the use of pop-up windows
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should enable users to establish “business rules” marks which apply through all system modules
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide on-line enquiry, documentation and help facilities at the menu, screen, transaction and individual field level with user customisable text
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Security
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should maintain a log of system operations, including, but not limited to:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· User identification
· time and date of initial access
· terminal identification
· applications accessed
· all activity performed while in system
· time and date of disconnection
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide role-based system screen/transaction access security with user ID/
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide system menus which display only options which are accessible by each particular user and/or user classification, based on defined user role
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should enable users to establish user ID/transaction/financial limit-based security which prevents users from processing specified transactions which individually exceed user-specified financial limits
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should facilitate user-defined user ID/classification group based system data access security which restricts the system data which is accessible to users on the basis of user-defined areas of responsibility, both in the context of system functionality and user-defined organisational unit groupings
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should store passwords in an encrypted fashion within the system in a way which cannot be decoded by any system users
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should allow users to change their own passwords both voluntarily and compulsorily on a user-defined periodic basis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should allow authorised data administrators to create, delete and modify user IDs
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should disable user ID access after a specified number of unsuccessful access attempts after which system administrator intervention is required to gain access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should permit system administrators to link functions to specific ports and limit or dedicate terminals to specific functions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide a detailed listing of all users on the system and individual access rights
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should include the User Identification as part of each transaction record. The users should not be able to change the user ID held on records
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should prevent the alteration of data through methods other than via authorised edit and update processes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide an automatic logout facility after a user-defined period of keyboard inactivity (e.g., 20 minutes) accompanied by an orderly shutdown of open files and records being accessed which allows the user to retrieve any affected data
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Internal controls
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should have adequate data validation controls to ensure that invalid data is not accepted in any field which has validation rules associated with it
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should ensure that inactive account codes cannot be used without being deliberately activated by the system administrator
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should allow fields on each screen to be defined as mandatory or non-mandatory, plus ensure that all mandatory items are input on each screen before allowing posting of any transaction
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should ensure that the same source information is not input more than once
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should ensure that accidental overwriting of data is prevented
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should have appropriate record locking to prevent concurrent access thereby ensuring that only one user can update a record at any one time
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should ensure that system generated identifiers are properly linked and cross-referenced to transactions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should generate exception and error reports, to allow monitoring and correction of invalid data and other errors, until acted upon
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Adequate system security should exist to ensure that a user ID can access the system from only one terminal at any one time
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should ensure that unauthorised users cannot gain entry to the operating system from within the system under any circumstances
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Auditability
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should maintain the following audit trails and logs in a form which users can both enquire on and print, if required:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· A verifiable audit trail which will enable the tracking of all transactions that alter the database in any way, by user ID, device, time and date stamp
· an audit trail which would enable a user to trace summary data back to its source
· an audit trail which identifies the source of any data which has been imported into the system from any external systems
· a record of attempted unauthorised uses of the system by user ID, device, time and date stamp, with warnings of such instances generated and automatically displayed and/or printed for senior authorised users
· an audit log of all overrides of system controls, by transaction type, specific control overridden, user ID, date, device and time
· audit trails which identify changes made to system parameters which would affect the processing or reprocessing of any transactions and the integrity of the database
· automatic and selective search/generation of audit trail exception reports which highlight breaches and/or abuse (both potential and actual) of system access, usage and functionality
	M
	
	
	
	
	



Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0



2.2. Chart of Account and General Ledger

The Chart of Accounts (CoA) is the backbone of any GFMS in support of budget development, control, execution and reporting. A poorly designed CoA significantly limits reporting and budget control flexibility; and may detrimentally limit the usefulness of an GFMS to meet future reporting requirements. Regularly changing a CoA structure, either during a year or beginning of the year, requires careful planning and very often a significant technical intervention to upgrade all past data to make compatible current and prior year comparison reporting across actual and budgeted data.
Before developing a CoA structure, it is essential to understand all current reporting and anticipate future reporting requirements.  Basically, one needs to answer the questions of:  what are the key data points required to be reported and at what levels of detail (budgeted control, budget vs. actual reporting and actual)?  Level of detail is most generally governed by the intended user of the reports.  Internal management obviously requires more detail and level of detail reduces as one moves from daily management through to periodic reporting to senior management.  External reporting is also generally at a more summarized level than internal.  Reporting requirements are also governed by both internal statutory requirements as well as any international externally mandated requirements (IFRS in GCF’s case).   
To meet these high-level objectives, GCF is utilizing Chart of Account best practice design principles.  These can be summarized along the following lines:
•	Utilize a multiple-segment approach
•	Each segment captures a single purpose data point only (two or more objectives are never combined in one segment)
•	Each segment consists of multiple elements or dimensions to provide adequate budget control and reporting flexibility within the segment. The multiple elements are built on a parent-child relationship (rollup/rolldown structure)
These principles are depicted in the Illustrative Chart of Account Structure provided below.
The General Ledger (GL) will naturally track all segments at the lowest element level for recording. All budget entries will be recorded in a parallel budget ledger that mirrors the GL.  The exact technical methodology for tracking both budget and actual utilizing the identical CoA will be determined by the GFMS supplier.

	ID
	2.2. Chart of Account Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Design and Setup of Chart of Accounts
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	All the code elements must be alphanumeric.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The Chart of Accounts is comprised of various “segments”, each segment is defined by a single objective. The system must support a minimum of 10 segments.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Each segment is built on a logical parent-child relationship for each code within a segment.  This means each segment must support various user-defined elements (levels) within the coding structure - all data entry takes place at the lowest level and the system must automatically “rollup” to higher level elements (summary level) for reporting and budget control purposes at whatever level the user requires
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The Account segment of the Chart of Accounts (COA) must designate each account type as revenue, expense, asset, liability, etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides for Sub Ledgers in the CoA
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Manage segment and element hierarchies via a GUI interface (drag-and-drop)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It must be possible to hold a description field against each code within a segment, and against each element within the segment code.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide authorized users with the ability to define COA code strings through discrete COA segments rather than a single field containing concatenated values
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	CoA structure hierarchies must have logic checks to ensure no duplication of data in the one structure
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Structure of Chart of Accounts: main segments
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	CoA code structure must allow for implementation of the account coding structure as described in below depiction.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Same chart of account code structure must be used for budget preparation and for budget execution.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The structure must allow for a minimum of 10 characters for each of the following segments and a user-defined number of elements within each segment:
	M
	
	
	
	
	



Illustrative Chart of Account Structure (to be further defined and finalized)
	
	SEGMENTS

	
	a) Fund Source                                      
	b) Organization
	c) Location                                      
	d) Program
	e) Project
	f) Thematic
	g) Output
	h) Account

	ELEMENTS
	GCF
Fund
Fund Source (contribution instrument)
Fund Detail
	GCF
Cost Centre
Division
Unit
Section
	World
Region
Country
	Program
Sub-program
Activity
	Project
Sub-project
Sub-sub-project/contract
	Size
Theme
Sub-theme
	Output                        Sub-output                                                               Sub-sub-output/activity
	L1 Rev/ Exp/ Liab /Asset/ Equity
L2
L3
L4




	ID
	2.2. Chart of Account Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Structure of Chart of Accounts: Financial Data
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Store a monetary amount with a minimum field size of 15 significant digits and two places after the decimal (15.2)
Four decimal places are required in foreign currency fields
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Maintain accounts on an accrual basis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Account balances to be summarized to a higher level to minimize storage requirements of history data
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Define reconciliation account codes so that bank reconciliations and any other types of reconciliation can be performed within the system
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Structure of Chart of Accounts: Multicurrency Capabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system MUST support multicurrency operations – currently this includes USD, GBP, EUR, JPY and KRW
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Amounts entered in a foreign currency should also be reflected in the base currency
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accommodate expansion of multicurrency operations to include other currencies in the future
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Structure of Chart of Accounts: Non-Financial Data
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Use memorandum data in all modules of the application system
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hold different types of memorandum data in modules of the system (e.g. units, hours)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Post memorandum entries at the same time as the financial transaction
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User to input one–sided memorandum entries that impact only one account
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Use of Chart of Accounts
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Masking of account number or portions of account number during editing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides authorized users with the ability to assign and define account types to the Account segment codes.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide online, immediate validity checks in real-time to highlight errors on the screen for immediate correction
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows placing individual accounts into active or inactive status
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Update and Maintenance of Chart of Accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The CoA should have a maintenance capability that allows manipulation of financial data associated with the account if:
· accounts are combined; or
· accounts are split
to accommodate any change to GCF’s structure.
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revise code definitions and descriptions as needed
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Permit additions and amendments to the CoA structure without corrupting existing data at any level in a simple and efficient way; i.e., without the need to rebuild the CoA. 
· For example, in the event of a Divisional reorganization, it must be possible to transfer Cost Centers and all associated data to a new or another existing Cost Centre and report on the data accordingly
· When required, the application of changes must be from a specific effective date within the financial year. In particular, audit trails of previous data entry and processing should remain intact
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide a facility for the bulk creation and amendment of account code combinations; for example, upload chart of accounts changes from spreadsheet file
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide controls ensuring that, for each element of the account code, any new codes are included in at least one hierarchy; for example, all new cost centers will point to an existing organizational parent
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Controls to ensure that data is summarized to a higher level before it is purged
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Include features to automatically purge and print old items after a user–defined period has passed
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Possible for obsolete data be purged
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Delete an account and transfer the related financial data (historical record) to an appropriate aggregated account
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to move an element from one area of a hierarchical structure to another, with associated data being automatically realigned, subject to appropriate security/access control
	M
	
	
	
	
	


General Ledger
	ID
	General Ledger Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	General Ledger: Manage Controls for General Ledgers
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Utilize posting control account codes for automatically generating balancing entries
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Identifies accounts that are inactive and inhibits or prohibits posts to those accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Suspense account creation to hold transactions with errors, to be processed and permanently classified at a later date
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Suspense accounts classified by error code
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deactivation of accounts so that no postings are possible (subject to process and user access controls); either: 
· permanently (with option to re-open) or 
· temporarily controlled by the use of specific open and closed dates
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Control user access to individual combinations of account codes, in terms of posting and enquiries/reporting etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Maintain self-balancing ledgers & sub-ledgers
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	There should be controls to prevent deletion of an account if it:
· has a current balance.
· has a zero balance but current period/year activity.
· If used in previous years (data to be available for prior year reporting)
· is used by another module of an integrated system.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	General Ledger: Reporting Requirements.
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Report writer enables the user to design standard monthly reports as well as "one-off' reports
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Summarize all types of financial data such as budgets, commitments, and actual expenditures and report against any combination of the chart of account segments and elements therein
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly analysis of Non–Budgetary Accounts
· by account type
· By organization
· by region
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly Analysis of Expenditure
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly Analysis of Revenue Collections
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly comparison of Revenue with Estimates
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly comparison of Revenue with historical data
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly comparison of Expenditure with Budget Estimates
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly comparison of Expenditure with cash flow forecasts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly comparison of expenditure with historical data
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly Receipts and Payments Schedule
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Journal Listing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Suspense Account listing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Daily Bank Balance Report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Daily Bank Reconciliation Report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· IFRS-Compliant Financial StatementsStatement of Financial Position
· Statement of Comprehensive Income
· Statement of Changes in Funds
· Statement of Cash Flows
· Notes to financial statements
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Audit trail of all transactions 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	General Ledger: Variable Analysis
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Analyzes deviations and changes in volume, efficiency and standard rates
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Compares variance, budget, forecast, and prior year in any combination
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	General Ledger: End-of-Period Processing
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must support user-defined periods consisting of consistent periods (e.g., months) and an additional period(s) for end-of-year processing (period 13 for all Y/E adjustments, for example)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User-defined periods consisting of consistent periods (e.g., months) and an additional period(s) for end-of-year processing (period 13 for all Y/E adjustments, for example)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Periods should be able to be 1) future (unopened), 2) opened (normal access), 3) suspended (no access), 4) closed (no general user access) and 5) finalized (no access and status locked) as defined below:
· Future periods can be opened for budget development or posting multi-year contract commitments, for example, however access is strictly controlled
· Open periods are available for normal user access subject to user security controls.  There should be only one open period active at any time
· Suspended is an action of the Administrator to temporarily lock users from the system
· Closed allows only selected security-enabled users to access the period for end-of-period processing
· Finalized is the state of locking the period, and hence all prior periods, from any user access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	End-of-period processing should automatically roll over all end of period balances and generate, or allow to be generated, period reports
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Efficient and effective monthly reconciliation mechanism of reconciling the:
· Accounts Payable to the Accounts Payable control accounts in the General Ledger 
· Accounts Receivable to the Accounts Receivable control accounts in the General Ledger 
· Fixed Assets to the Fixed Assets cost, accumulated depreciation, and depreciation expense accounts in General Ledger
	M
	
	
	
	
	


Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0




 


2.3. Budget (Financial Planning and Analysis)
The Budget Management/Planning module is designed to assist with the development of GCF’s budget from the start of the process, with the elaboration of the resource envelope available for the forthcoming budget, through to the finalization of the budget and its transfer into the General Ledger for execution. Both the Budget Management module and the GL use the same Chart of Accounts.
The Budget Management/Planning System, therefore, should be able to consolidate and store budget submissions from the GCF’s subordinate divisions, as well as the IUs. It should also be able to accept and record changes to submissions based on discussions between the SMT and the divisions, the Budget Committee, and the Board. The system will also need to accommodate both financial and performance data, which will be required for adoption of Output-Based Budgeting.
The system should also be capable of recording in the budget format the estimates for at least three years beyond the current budget year.
Modern Budget Management systems are highly automated and eliminate the need for tedious, error-prone processes, such as the manual consolidation of numerous spreadsheets. The system will produce the necessary reports and charts required for management decision-making. Depending on user requirements, the Budget Management module can be configured to enforce budget limits by cost center, organizational unit, or budget line item (e.g., staff salaries). The various stages of approval can also be configured, as well as the levels to which the approvals apply. Once final (Board) approval has been obtained, the module transfers the approved Budget to the General Ledger.




	ID
	2.3. Budget Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
		Budget Control
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget control logic can be defined at any area of the account structure or for any number of levels
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget tolerances and budget and field overrides can be defined by user
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User-defined period intervals
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
		Budget Accounting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Establishes mandatory budgets for selected balance sheets, accounts, and profit and loss accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Income, expense, liability and assets accounts can be used in the budgeting process
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multiple budgets can be created from a single account to create what-if scenarios and for forecasting
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Annual, quarterly, monthly, or customized budget periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Creates financial statements in conjunction with budgets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pro rata distribution of annual budgets over different periods, including quarterly, monthly, or other, customized periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pro rata distribution of quarterly budgets over monthly accounting periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
		Allocation of Budgets
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Defines budget level financial allocations
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Upper-level budgets are distributed among appropriate division-level or detail budgets, by cost centers, organization units or divisions, product lines, or projects
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budgets are proportionally distributed to other accounts or groups
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
		Budget Development (Planning and Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Must utilize the same CoA as the Budget Execution system.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow definition of multiple budget versions and support the production and recording of multiple versions of budget requests.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support multi–year budgeting (budget year plus up to three future years).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support Output–based budgeting.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support budget development on a yearly and monthly basis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow user definition of budget hierarchies to support the organizational budgeting hierarchies
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support dissemination of budget instructions (circular) at the outset of the budget cycle
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide automatic roll–up and drill–down abilities for budget data
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide a centralized database that stores all approved budget versions, planning assumptions and control information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to include previous years’ commitment, actual expenditure data and current year budget data during budget preparation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow comparison with previous years’ budget details (budget and actuals)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide flexible and effective data collection across divisions and IUs. Allow data export to and import from a user–friendly spreadsheet
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide easy–to–use modelling tools to perform budget forecasting and ‘what–if’ analysis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Handle supplementary budget requests during the budget development process
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to input and maintain an inflationary–based budget
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support budget comparison by cost center
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support various methods of forecasting such as projecting expenditures, budget trends etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to conduct sensitivity analysis for different levels of estimated budget
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide facilities for tracking budget history
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to maintain narratives associated with the budgets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to print draft budget documents required for submission to the SMT and the Board.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to transfer the approved budget data into the Budget Execution System
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to make massive changes to budget line items
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support multiple types of capital projects
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to integrate funding from multiple sources
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support the ability to project ordinary (i.e. continuing) budget implications because of capital budgets.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow the user to finalize the approved budget and present further modifications to the final budget version through the budget development process
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow the user to track and provide comparisons of proposed and approved budget modifications
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support the production of budget documents for review by the SMT/EAC, Budget Committee and final approval by the Board.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must be able to hold budgets at any level of the Chart of Accounts. 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system to fully incorporate workflows into the development and approvals process (roles and access rights)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System handles both revenue and expenditure budgeting in accordance with the CoA
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System incorporates the use of configurable (user-defined control levels within the CoA) budget ceiling functionality
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must be capable of budgeting for current budget year and minimum 3 years forward years
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must be able to retain the current year budget and minimum of 5 years previous budgets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	In addition to being able to develop budgets within the system directly, it must also be able to:
· allow budgets to be imported from the following file formats: • Microsoft Access • Microsoft Excel • CSV file
· allow budget information to be exported in the following formats: • Microsoft Access • Microsoft Excel • XML • CSV
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to transfer the approved budget data into the budget execution system for control and reporting purposes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide the ability to print draft budget documents required for submission to The Board. At minimum, the documents are:
(a) an Administrative budget, showing in detail the estimated income receivable and expenditure to be incurred during the financial year beginning on the first day of January next ensuing; 
(b) a capital budget, showing in detail the projected receipts and projected expenditure applicable thereto during the financial year beginning on the first day of January next ensuing; 
(c)  the GCF’s budgeted Statement of Financial Position and budgeted Cash Flow Statement, for the financial year beginning on the first day of January next ensuing; 
(d) the GCF’s strategic plan and budget, for the period of the three financial years beginning on the first day of January next ensuing, including – 
(i) a statement of the objectives;  
(ii) the nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken; 
(iii) justification in respect of capital budgets; and 
(iv) the performance targets and other measures by which the performance of the GCF may be judged in relation to its objectives, and consistent with the accounting standards
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget Maintenance during Execution
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should be possible for the system to retain the current budget and those for the past five years.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It must be possible to update budget data through:
· table maintenance by user.
· loading of external data in the form of spreadsheets, etc.
· budget changes in the form of journal entries
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	All budget transfers vouchers must have a net effect of zero before being accepted for posting
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be able to maintain budget data on a weekly, 4–weekly, monthly, quarterly, and annual basis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It must be possible to track, analyze and report all revisions and transfers to/from a budget line to show the original, all subsequent changes and final amended budget.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should be possible to profile a budget amount across time periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should be possible to flag budget lines where actuals exceed budgets by a certain percentage or amounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Functionality available to lock budgets against unauthorized changes if required.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to enter next year’s budget data before the end of the current year without overwriting current year budgets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System to provide functionality to process/control/authorize virements (budget reallocations) in accordance with financial rules set down by the GCF in respective regulations and enforce self-balancing before posting.  Apart from authorization controls that must be configured into the approvals workflow
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System to provide functionality to process/control/authorize supplemental budget adjustments in accordance with financial rules set down by the GCF in respective regulations
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	When undertaking maintenance on the Chart of Account codes, the budget planning and budget executions system must be fully integrated in this respect, meaning there is always real-time synchronization (there can never be a different CoA for budget planning and budget execution)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget Execution Reporting General Requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reporting on financial status must be available at any user-defined level and hierarchy of the chart structure
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	On-line viewing of standard reports should be available to authorized users
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Standard system budget execution report must present financial data per chart structure (segments and elements), providing, at minimum, the following key characteristics: 
· ‘Approved Budget’ 
· Original Budget
· Cumulative Reallocations
· Supplemental [separated by supplemental number]
· Final Budget
· ‘Budget Release’ [Allotment]
· Cumulative Cash Release
· Cumulative Commitment Release
· ‘Commitment’ 
· Soft Commitment (PO issuance)
· Hard Commitment (Contract issuance)
· ‘Actual’ [accrual based]
· ‘Variances’ 
· Release Available [Cumulative Commitment Release - Soft Commitment – Hard Commitment – Actual = Available Free Commitment Balance]
· Free Budget Available [Final Budget – Soft Commitment – Hard Commitment – Actual = Free Budget Available]
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	In addition to the above noted comprehensive budget execution reports, the system shall be able to generate on an “on demand” basis the following financial statements in accordance with the format as prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards, presented at any customer-defined chart of account level:
(a) Statement of Financial Position;
(b) Statement of Financial Performance;
(c) Cash Flow Statement;
(d) Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
(e) Notes to financial statements
(f) Statement of Comparison of Budget & Actual Amounts
(g) 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Foreign currency transactions must be viewable in both the transaction currency and the default system currency
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	[bookmark: _Toc517698562]Budget Reporting Other Requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget summary report aggregated by each BCS segment
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Expenditure estimates summary report aggregated by each expenditure classification segment
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revenue estimates summary report aggregated by each revenue classification segment
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget submission reports showing classified information for past and future years.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Annual Budget covering the data for three years
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Analysis of Budget Transfers and supplementary budgets by user-defined criteria
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget likely outturn report by extrapolation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget Execution Control- There must be functionality to set both spending limits (cash allotment ceilings) and commitment limits (commitment allotment ceilings), in addition to control at the overall budget level – effectively 3 levels of control each transaction must be validated against, bottom up manner, during budget execution.  The spending and commitment ceilings can be released during the fiscal year on a periodic basis (monthly, quarterly or half-yearly)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget ceilings must be user defined for the purposes of funds control (cash and commitment ceilings), at user defined levels (hierarchies within the CoA structure – segments & element levels within segments)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System must provide functionality to prohibit spending and incurring commitments beyond the limits of funds/commitments set in their applicable ceilings.  System budget validation and messages must be provided should any control ceiling be exceeded during the recording process of any transaction.  If budget ceiling will be exceeded by transaction, the transaction “will be rejected” for posting.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System must provide functionality to ensure that the issue of periodic spending and commitment ceilings (cumulative or date bounded) does not exceed the limits of corresponding overall budget (as amended during the year according to applicable rules).
	M
	
	
	
	
	


Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0





2.4. Procurement (source to pay)

The procurement function covers the scope from procurement planning as part of GCF’s annual budgeting and planning process to the registering and maintenance of vendor information to the procurement events for all caetgories and types to contracting and vendor performance.   It links to the Accounts Payable requirements for the recording of the vendor master data and the payment of invoices following approved receipt of the goods and services.  

	ID
	2.4. Procurement Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Policies and Procedures
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support development procurement plan as part of GCF’s annual budgeting and planning process
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support sourcing and category management strategies including but not limited to:
· Small procurement (eg office supplies)
· Long-term agreements (LTAs)
· Professional services (eg legal Consultancy Services)
· ICT equipment
· Emergency procurement
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support vendor registration (refer to vendor profile data in Accounts Payable)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monitor/Manage supplier information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Process/Review requisitions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Review and approve Approve requisitions including rejection & cancellation as needed
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Solicit/Track vendor quotes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support solicitation of vendor responses
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support Evaluation Methodology of vendor responses
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Create/Distribute purchase orders
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receive goods/services including partial delivery and incomplete delivery
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reconcile purchase orders
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Research/Resolve order exceptions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Select vendors and develop/maintain contracts as part of contract award
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Negotiate and establish contracts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Manage contract lifecycle including routine administration and amendments
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Prepare/Analyze procurement and vendor performance
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Analyze organization’s spend profile
	M
	
	
	
	
	



Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0



2.5 Accounts Payable
The Accounts Payable module handles invoices for goods and services which have been approved for payment from the Administrative Budget, disbursements to Accredited Entities and Development Partners for project activities, and reimbursement payments for items such as travel expenses, et cetera.
The AP module prioritizes and schedules payments according to GCF’s established criteria. Various types of transactions can be set up in the system, as required. Payments for goods and services received are straightforward, with the AP module ensuring sufficient funds are available and then schedules each invoice for payment prior to the due date.
In the case of disbursements, the transaction may be originated either by the relevant Project Manager or according to the schedule generated by the Treasury Management System from the project FAA. In either case, the AP module will use a transaction template to be completed by the Project Manager or by the AP system itself. The completed template contains all the information required for the transaction to be carried out. It is then forwarded to the necessary signatories within GCF, then transmitted securely by the SWIFT network to the Trustee for execution. As the required, information is inserted into the payment instruction automatically, thus there is much reduced scope for error, or for resubmission of the payment instruction. On completion of the transaction, the Trustee sends a notification via the SWIFT network to GCF as confirmation and the transaction is recorded as completed by GFMS

[image: Diagram

Description automatically generated]Revised disbursements process flow for project implementation costs and project fees 

	ID
	2.5. Accounts Payable Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Policies and Procedures
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should have the inherent functionality to access a financial institutions database to allow verification of bank details, if allowed by the bank
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of operating with multiple bank accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of generating a file of consolidated payment orders for transmission/delivery to the GCF’s banks, on both a scheduled and ad hoc basis.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of accepting and reconciling scheduled payment summary data from the GCF’s banks
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should have a facility to generate a recall request to cancel Payment Orders already forwarded to the GCF’s banks
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of processing user defined End of Period and End of Financial/Fiscal Year requirements.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should be capable of reconciling and reporting on transactions linked to other core modules
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide appropriate levels of user access security dependent on the level of user and their statutory roles
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Invoices can be loaded against a PO or as the initial transaction record.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Supplier Master Data
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should ensure that supplier/vendor details are matched in all modules, ideally in shared databases/tables enabling access and update of records across systems.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	A workflow requesting approval for newly/registered vendors
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	For entering and storing the following vendor information:
· Vendor Name.
· Vendor Number or Code (auto-generated based on user-defined protocol).
· Headquarters Mailing Address.
· Purchasing Mailing Address.
· Vendor web site URL.
· Vendor primary e-mail.
· Tax ID Number (TIN).
· Main Phone number.
· Business Category Code.
· Last Date vendor Utilized.
· Type of company (e.g., corporation, partnership, etc.).
· Primary Commodity Code Purchased.
· Problem Vendor flag.
· Preferred Vendor flag.
· Preferred Vendor rank (Primary, Secondary, Tertiary, etc.).
· Vendor-on-hold flag (e.g. litigation, payment dispute, etc.).
· Default Payment Terms Code.
· Payment methods.
· Vendor payment email notification flag.
· Vendor payment contact name and phone number.
· Bank transit and account numbers.
· SWIFT Bank Name.
·  SWIFT Bank Address.
· Alternate Vendor Numbers (state vendor No. etc.).
· Primary Contact Person.
· Contact Title.
· Primary Contact Voice Phone.
· Primary Contact Fax.
· Primary Contact Mobile Phone.
· Minimum of Five (5) User-defined information fields.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must allow users to:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· locate vendors by using a partial name search (search wildcards) on the primary name of that vendor.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· maintain pricing information, quantity price breaks, freight terms and shipping information for each vendor.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· evaluate vendors for each event point (milestone) based on user-defined criteria for commodities as well as professional services.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· search for vendor information while using all purchase transaction processes (i.e., requisition and purchase order maintenance).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· create vendor groupings for specific commodities, locations, etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· maintain an audit trail for changes to the vendor master file.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· change vendor name without losing the history.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· maintain a history of payments made to the vendor.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· detect duplicate vendor information upon entry of vendor information.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· allow transactions with valid vendors only.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· allow the selective inactivation or purging of vendor records by user-defined criteria.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· search for a vendor by item code, tax ID number, vendor number, alternate vendor number, or description (in other words, attach vendor to an item(s).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	maintain statistics in KRW/USD/JPY/EUR/GBP amounts for each vendor for user-specified periods
for the following criteria:
· Payment history.
· Discounts taken.
· Discounts lost.
· Purchase price variances.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Invoice Process and Aging
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Invoices loaded against a PO must have a Goods Receipt (GR) attached for a value no less than the Invoice amount
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Where the Invoice value exceeds the value of GR (calculated as item cost by delivery amount), the additional amount must be approved by an authorized user and must be subject to funds availability checking.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-PO invoices must be subject to funds availability checking under the same conditions as a Purchase Order or Requisition
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must support contract payment invoice processing (multiple payments against a single PO)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	When the invoice is loaded, it must contain a ‘Pay By’ date based on the contract or according to GCF policy on payment terms
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must support Advances processing and the acquittal of Advances with multiple lines of allocation coding for any acquittal
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Paperless matching--match and pay without invoice 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Scanned invoice images available online
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Credit and Debit Note processing must be supported
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Invoices may only be loaded against ‘Active’ Vendors
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Invoice entry must be supported by multiple line coding to the CoA.  Where Invoice is loaded against a Purchase Order, coding lines may not be altered
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be the single source of Vendors
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reporting on screen must be supported for:
· Invoices against Vendors
· Outstanding Invoices and aging
· Invoices cancelled or suspended
· Invoices without Goods Receipt
All reports should support minimum User parameters of Ledger code, vendor code, date or date range, value (e.g. >KRW/USD/JPY/EUR/GBP)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall have the ability in respect of Accounts Payable to allow the following
(i) Vendor file set-up and maintenance
(ii) Track and report on various information such as:
a. Invoice no. and date
b. Purchase order
c. Contract no. and date
d. Outstanding Orders 
e. Etc.
The generation of standard Accounts Payable reports
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Journal Invoice Process and Ledger Posting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Posts all AP entries automatically to the General Ledger
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows authorised users to complete on-line maintenance (add, change, delete) of
vendor invoices.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows authorised users to change an invoice due date
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows expenses to be segregated into multiple accounts spanning all segments of the Chart of Accounts (partially).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows Vendor Master Data to contain default values for payment terms, YTD purchase and payment totals, report controls, and other frequently used system parameters.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Supports pre-paid invoices.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Processes FOREX payments with exchange rate values and clearance amount verifications.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows processing of recurring transactions.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receives vendor invoices through EDI (Electronic Data Interchange)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Offers date-sensitive processing. Allow transactions to be posted to the next month even though the previous month is still open.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow, subject to approval, entry of invoices when there is no purchase order number or receiving report
available.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows maintaining pricing information, quantity price breaks, freight terms and
shipping information for each vendor.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows creating vendor groupings for specific commodities, locations, etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounts for taxes paid and taxes accrued at the location level
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Create journal for Fixed Assets module when Invoices processed for Fixed Assets.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interfaces
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The Purchasing system
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The General Ledger system
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Treasury Management System
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fixed Assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	AP Inquiries & Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides the following function types:
· an AP Open Item inquiry.
· a Vendor History inquiry.
· the Vendor Master file.
· Payment History.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides the following reports:
· a Cash Reconciliation Report.
· a listing of all payments scheduled to be paid the next payment date.
· an Invoice Register.
· a General Ledger Distribution Report.
· a Supplier Analysis Report.
· an Open Accounts Payable list.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Produces cash flow reports by expense category and period.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounts Payable Aging Report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Generates an exception report showing unmatched purchase orders, receivings, and
invoices.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows the number of days in each aging category (bucket) to be user defined.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows creation of a customer billing transaction for certain vendor charges that are
being billed to a customer.
E.g. set-up charges, vendor tooling charges, freight premiums, etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	


Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0



2.6 Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable are claims for payment due to an entity for goods or services provided that have not yet been paid for by the recipient, however recipient has received the benefit of said goods or services. In the context of the GCF, Accounts Receivable may refer to the following sources of revenue:
a. Capital, loans, grants, and any other contributions from parties to the Convention (UN Framework Convention on Climate Change) or from private and other alternative sources.
b. Investment income from funds held by the Trustee.
c. Reflows from Accredited Entities or Delivery Partners.
d. Miscellaneous income.
For contributions, responsibility is split between the DEA, which manages relationships with other organizations, and the Finance Unit, which handles the timing and accounting aspects of Accounts Receivable (AR). The various forms of contribution to the GCF Trust Fund are recorded in AR by the Finance Unit. DEA handles replenishment, from both the private and the public sector, which includes not only fundraising, but also cultivating long-term relationships with donors and prospective donors in governments and the private sector (corporations, investment funds, foundations, etc.).
The Finance Unit, in consultation with DEA, OPM and other areas as may be necessary, sets up the details of GCF customers and contributors in FACT ERP.  Data is obtained from DEA, Resource Mobilization Teams, iPMS. 
Contributions may be received in the following categories:
a. Unconditional contributions, which are recorded when received (with or without donor restrictions);
b. Conditional contributions, where certain conditions must be met before the assets are transferred;
c. Deferred contribution revenue, where there is a doubt that GCF will be able to use the contributions for the intended purposes and any unused portion of the contribution received will need to be refunded to the contributor. 
Promissory notes, which can be drawn down in cash on demand, make up a substantial portion of contribution receivables.  They are recorded in the accounts at face value, less a discount of the future cash flows based on the duration and the credit risk of the issuer, calculated as at each reporting date (currently, annually).
The revenue recognition for such contributions is deferred to future periods to match the underlying related expenses. Finance does not receive data relating to future transactions.  
Reflows refer to any amount payable by the borrower to GCF, including any outstanding loan amount, interest, fees, or any other cost. They are recognized upon receipt of the notice of the reflow from the AEs and will be accounted for according to the nature of the project funding.  
For Miscellaneous Income, data is supplied from Procurement for Goods and Services, and from Human Resources for Employee Expenses, such as recovery of advances etc. Miscellaneous income is recorded at the earlier of a) when there is reasonable certainty that it will be received; or b) when it is received.
The conditions pertaining to many of these categories of revenue are too complex for a traditional Accounts Receivable module to capture. Typically, such a module would handle miscellaneous income such as that mentioned above. A Treasury Management system is more likely to meet the requirements of the more complex categories of revenue.
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With the advent of a fully functional, integrated Accounts Receivable and Treasury Management System (TMS) as part of GFMS, the Reflow process could be streamlined along the lines illustrated in the above process flowchart. The TMS stores details of loans, grants, promissory notes, guarantees and equities entered into by GCF, taken from the FAA, iPMS and various other sources. Consequently, TMS is the single source of such information in GCF. TMS uses this information to generate receipts and disbursement schedules, which are then reflected in the Accounts Receivable module. 
The AE submits a Notice of Payment (NOP) to GCF which is automatically validated by the AR module against its list of scheduled receipts. The following four steps can be eliminated:
· Confirmation of receivable amount to GCF Finance
· Request for bank information to the Trustee
· Submission of bank information to GCF by Trustee
· Submission of bank information to OPM by Finance
Since GFMS has received the NOP from the AE and validated it, details of the receivable amount have already been recorded by the system. TMS holds information concerning the bank accounts associated with the Trustee and the associated financial instruments. It then selects the appropriate account to receive the reflow. This information is then transmitted to the AE. Following the transfer of funds from the AE to GCF, GFMS can access details of the transfer from the Trustee and from GCF’s bank accounts. This information can be accessed by authorized GCF users in a timely manner; there is no longer any need for the Finance Unit to be involved in the process. The Trustee receives confirmation of the transfer via the banking system. Advice of the transfer is then sent to the AE and the relevant documentation uploaded into iPMS.
GFMS has an interface to the SWIFT network, which allows all messages, instructions and verification concerning financial transactions to be sent and received securely.
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	ID
	2.6. Accounts Receivable Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Data Requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall maintain an Accounts Receivable ledger, by revenue source, with the following information:
· Supplier/vendor/customer/Contributor name, address, etc.
· Description of the amount due and the date due
· Interest and penalty accruing
· Other relevant information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall maintain customer records with the following information:
· Provide automated numbering of customers with user-defined sorting and sequencing capabilities
· Maintain a customer table with name data
· Maintain a customer table with multiple addresses for sold-to, ship-to, and bill-to
· Maintain a customer table with multiple contacts, including name, location, title, phone, and fax data
· Maintain a customer table with payment terms
· Maintain a customer table with active or inactive status data
· Maintain a customer table with customer defaults, which differ from standard defaults
· Maintain a summarized history of all written-off customers and invoices for five years
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should have access to a financial institutions database to allow verification of bank details.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of operating with multiple bank accounts.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be capable of processing user defined End of Period and End of Financial/Fiscal Year requirements.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should ensure that supplier/vendor/customer/Contributor details are matched in all modules, ideally in shared databases/tables enabling access and update of records across systems.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It should be capable of reconciling and reporting on transactions linked to other core modules.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide appropriate levels of user access security dependent on the level of user and their requirements.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Processing Requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow either open item or balance forward processing of receivables
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Compute late charges for customers not paying within a defined time period
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Consolidate multiple-location customer billings into a single open item, due from one paying location
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatically balances the A/R master file and checks the total file balance against the accounts in the G/L master file
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The A/R master file internally balances individual open item A/R records against corresponding account balances in the customer master file, automatically, and reports exceptions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Issuing invoices for percent complete
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tracks advance payments and down payments, and posts them to A/R 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Credit and Collections Management (Sundry Debtors)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide a Sundry Debtors function capable of recording details of invoices and provide appropriate management of current and past sundry debts held by the GCF.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should enable the creation of invoices to a specific debtor.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide multiple user defined debt ageing options and provide analysis based on ageing options.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide an option to identify and approve the Write Off or Waiver of bad debts.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Contains a user defined customer classification code.
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Contains full synchronised contact information in the customer/Contributor/AEs master file (single source only - iPMS):
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Customer Number.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Customer Name.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Customer address.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Mobile number.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Business number.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Email address.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· City.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Region.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Country.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Postal Code.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Contains codes to identify contact persons assigned to a Contributor/AE.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Prevents the deletion/closure of customer accounts with open balances.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Produces Edit Lists of all new or changed customer information so it can be reviewed
and approved.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Allows that a customer type code is designated to the user-defined customer category a customer belongs to:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· a Credit Rating field of sufficient length to handle rating numbers.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· a Credit Limit designator.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· a code designating if a customer should be charged sales tax or not.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· a code designating if a credit history is kept on a customer.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· a code designating the type of sales history (detail, summary, none, etc.) that should be kept for a customer.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· has comprehensive functionality for the creation and maintenance of customer information.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The proposed AR functionality of the ERP system supports:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Balance Forward.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Open Item.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Both simultaneously.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	A/R Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall have the ability to generate aged receivable report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Proposed system must have facilities to allow data input through electronic file transfer (remote connectivity) from external systems.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ages the receivables according to user-definable time periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ages receivables either according to invoice date or according to due date
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Apart from the Aged Receivable report, the system should also provide a full suite of revenue reporting, which can track and report on the following characteristics as it relates to revenue:
· Date
· Banking details
· Revenue type
· Amount collected
· Revenue classification
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Upon request, print a batch listing, showing every item in a particular batch
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Produces an A/R journal that lists all activity posted to the A/R master file, and sorts report line items by either batch and line number or customer number
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	A/R aging report shows a line item for each invoice posted to the A/R master file
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Creates A/R aging reports with one line item per customer
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance forward system produces a period end A/R trial balance showing each account's open period balance, all posting activity, and closing balance
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Print an accounts receivable exception report listing all accounts with credit balances
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide a customer contact listing, showing name, phone number, and other contact information by customer
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Creates a management summary or a key indicator report containing a summary of A/R activity
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Forecast receipts based on the historical payment patterns of customer accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Produce a general ledger distribution by plant or business unit whenever journals are forwarded to the general ledger
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Print customer statements showing detailed activity and net amount due for the period
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provide a complete listing of the customer master file, which shows each data element in every record
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Permit printable "customer record only" invoices and retain for history (must be memo-only and not post to G/L)
	M
	
	
	
	
	





Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0




2.7. Cash and Bank Management
The Cash Management module of GFMS will be tightly integrated with the Accounts Receivable (AR) and Accounts Payable (AP) modules. At its simplest, it takes data from these two modules on revenues falling due, scheduled payments for goods and services, and disbursements, together with balances from GCF’s bank accounts, to produce cash flow projections over a range of periods, as required by users. In addition, the module performs bank reconciliations using the statements submitted by the banks and the data from the AR and AP modules.
More complex Cash Management systems can perform a range of additional tasks, such as FOREX risk management, liquidity management, and investment management. The module is also integrated with the TMS and can include relevant data to enhance its cash flow forecasts.  The solution should include cashflow management and forecasting including production of a consolidated cash forecast, scenarios and stress testing and advanced forecasting.  Additionally, it should include reconciliation of Bank Accounts (including Trustee Records) and provide cash management reporting.



[image: Diagram
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The process steps in the flow chart above annotated with ‘A’ are targets (x 8 identified) for automation by the module and therefore elimination.  Depending on the solution, staff interaction may be necessary where business rules and decisions cannot be fully automated.

	ID
	2.7. Cash and Bank Management Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	 
	System Requirements 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	System maintains cash book(s) of all cash transactions, which require and do not require individual general ledger (GL) journals
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System maintains multiple cash books and bank accounts; for example, individual cash books in respect of various bank accounts operated by GCF
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 
	Multi-entity, multicurrency cash flow forecasting with: 
· automated presentation of Treasury cash flows 
· ease of upload of non-Treasury flows 
· remote user access/input 
· ability to “lock” forecasts 
· actual versus forecast comparison and tracking 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Macro/micro views of forecasts 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Updates and maintains pay date schedule
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	 
	Retention of cash flow history and ability to modify user’s new projection 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Drill down detail on all aggregates 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Automated upload bank account balances in current views/presentation of cash position 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Automated upload of bank account cash movements in reconciliation versus Treasury flows 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Configurable Reconciliation Rules 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Cash pooling facility to mirror bank account configuration 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Cash Management Dashboard with key live metrics 
	 M
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Must have the facility to interface with the SWIFT network to transmit/receive financial instructions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	"Miscellaneous" category for charges and deposits
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash Forecasting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User-defined cash-flow forecast periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System should be able to record and consolidate data from various sources for the purposes of arriving at cash forecasts.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash-flow forecast generated based on items in accounts payable (AP) and accounts receivable (AR) modules taking into account:
1. invoices approved for payment, but payment not made
2. invoices received but not yet approved for payment
3. goods received but not invoiced
4. debt transactions
5. recurring payments based on budget profile/prior accruals
6. revenue projections by type of revenue
7. other external sources of financing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash forecasting system should be able to handle outflows in multiple currencies
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash forecasting foreign currency exposure and model impact of rate changes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	It must be possible to forecast the cash outflows and inflows (projections):
1. daily over the next week
2. daily over the next two weeks
3. daily over the next month
4. over the next three months
5. by a user defined period
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	"What-if" analysis based on moving due dates or receipt dates
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Link to AP system to reschedule items based on what-if forecast
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Link to AR system to change priority of items for collection based on what-if forecast
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash Management/Bank Reconciliation
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must provide a bank reconciliation tool
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reconciliation of transactions in user-designated bank accounts - records cash payments and receipts via electronic banking functions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reconciliation process must support both electronic bank statements and paper-based statements
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Notifies and reports on statement discrepancies
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to electronically upload bank statements in MT940 and similar formats
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Integration with Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunication (SWIFT)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System shall have the ability to generate an on-demand Bank reconciliation statement and details for all bank accounts held by GCF
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Where the reconciliation process identified outstanding items, it should be possible to age those outstanding items 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	History of reconciliation results must be stored for all cash and bank accounts for user-defined periods
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Standard reports must show online and in printable form (print account statements), the current balances of all bank accounts, either with or without outstanding items according to user defined report parameters
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers between bank accounts and cash balances must be supported by journal entry and report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System must support multiple currencies and the maintenance of exchange rates and exchange rate histories
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall allow payments to be made by electronic funds transfer
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system shall ensure that no payment is made unless a payment voucher is generated by the system using the prescribed form duly certified and authorized by designated persons
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Scanned copies of the invoice and other supporting documents for the payment must be uploaded in the system and automatically attached to the relevant payment voucher
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The payment voucher must have a system generated number and must also have the relevant electronic fund transfer number(s)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash Management Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system produces:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Up-to-date cash balance report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· A cash balance by funding source report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· A cash balance by grant/project report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Checks committed funds against cash reserves or availability
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system provides the ability to track multiple receipt types including:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Cash.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Direct Transfer/EFT.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Standing Order.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Credit Cards
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Online Payments.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Online banking.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Other User Defined.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows inquiries to monitor daily cash balance within the financial system:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· By funding source.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· By bank account.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· By type 
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· By funding instrument.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· By project.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Financial Projections.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Liquidity Management.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bank Account Management.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bank Fee Analysis.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bank Transfers.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Payment approval for Bank Transfers.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bank Statements
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bank Monitoring Cockpit to monitor and adjust currency and interest rate exposure
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Views of inflows and outflows from cash book by bank, year, or statement
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Provides cash flow analysis tools based upon projected expenditure activity.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Establishes default account distributions for each revenue source.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Debt and Investment Management (or in Treasury Management system)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System can maintain investment and loan information
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatic journal entries for periodic interest income and expense
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Administers for debt, investments, foreign exchange, equities, and derivatives, guarantees
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatically generates investment charge allocation entries by user-defined instrument percentages
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides the ability to account for multiple restricted and unrestricted bank and
investment accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Projects future Cash/Investment position for Treasury
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investment Management Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides Portfolio Valuation report
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Allows Reporting for:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific AEs.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific banks.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific service types.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific periods.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific (bank/AE code) countries.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Specific bank account types.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Automatically generates investment earnings allocation journal entries by user-defined percentages at the investment level.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Risk Management (for confirmation/discussion)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Allows International FOREX Risk Management:
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Documentary Collection.
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Letters of Credit.
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Bill of Exchange.
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Hedging.
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· The module is integrated with other subsystems (modules) to provide
centralized, real-time information to all users
	M
	
	
	
	
	



Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0





2.8. Fixed Assets
Although Fixed Assets are not a material component of GCF’s balance sheet, sound asset management procedures and fiduciary responsibilities to its stakeholders are key requirements for GCF.  GCF internal policy sets capitalization limits for tangible and intangible assets, however they also require that certain low value assets, which are expensed immediately however as a group meet the capitalization criteria, must also be tracked and managed by the asset management module.  The fixed asset module must provide such functionality.  The fixed asset module must be seamlessly integrated with the AP module so that asset entries are generated and are ready for posting to the fixed asset management module for management purposes. 
The high-level objectives of the fixed assets management module are:
•	Ensure all assets that meet GCF capitalization thresholds are fully recorded (completeness)
•	System must support all common depreciation and amortization methods, with user-defined parameters. System must ensure depreciation/amortization entries are automatically generated on a set periodic basis and are queued for approval/posting.
•	System must fully support asset management across the various data points outlined in the requirements below
•	System must fully support periodic asset counts with focused report generation and functionality to process/approve count results.





	ID
	2.8. Fixed Assets Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Multiple Books
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System provides multiple book capability for accounting, tax and other valuations
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multicurrency
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Simple (assets may be entered in foreign currencies and converted to base)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Complex (asset register and values maintained in more than one base currency)
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Records for Fixed Assets / Asset Data
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	 The system must be able to store the following details:
1.	System generated asset number
2.	Asset category/Group/Class
3.	Asset Life
4.	Asset Remaining Life
5.	Purchase Order Number
6.	Purchase Order Line Number
7.	Invoice Number
8.	Invoice Line Number
9.	Internal Reference Number
10.	Asset Description
11.	Supplier Name
12.	Acquisition Date
13.	Current Value of Asset
14.	Last Valuation Date
15.	Quantity of Asset
16.	Unit of Measure
17.	Transfer Date
18.	Transferred From
19.	Date Asset Disposed
20.	Disposal Value
21.	Cost Value at Disposal
22.	Name of Organization Asset Disposed To
23.	Accumulated Depreciation at Disposal
24.	Disposal Expenses
25.	Custodian of Asset
26.	Asset Model Type
27.	Asset Serial Number
28.	Condition of Asset	
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to record maintenance information against asset
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to define asset maintenance schedules with tracking of scheduled maintenance performed
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Assets may be grouped in hierarchies for reporting and inquiry
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Assets can be tracked by asset model/Serial numbers, description, type, tag number, location, PO, invoice number, or lease
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Link to general ledger (GL) element values (for example, cost center) to define department that owns asset
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Link to GL element values (for example, cost center) to define department that will be charged depreciation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Link to GL accounts to define asset acquisition, disposal and depreciation accounts
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Insurance Details
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	1.	Insurance Carrier
2.	Insurance Value of Asset
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset Acquisition Transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Online asset entry
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	"Quick" asset entry transaction (enter minimum data to allow volume data entry)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Default values may be associated with asset class (for example, depreciation method)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Direct entry of asset data from accounts payable (AP) invoice entry (system detects entry to asset account and requires entry of asset data)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Supports entry of budget assets to support capital and depreciation planning
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Spreadsheet asset upload capability
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must have the ability to:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Manage/reconcile down-payments.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Tie originating docs to asset objects (Asset ID).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Define approval levels/thresholds/hierarchy for employees
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Support real time, on line reporting on assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/Amortization of Assets
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Flexible asset depreciation calendars
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User defined depreciation rates can be rules-based
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Standard and user-defined depreciation calculations
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation methods: straight line, declining balance, sum-of-the-years digits
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	1.	Depreciation/Amortization Year
2.	Depreciation/ Amortization Charge for Period
3.	Depreciation/ Amortization Charge for Year to Date
4.	Depreciation/ Amortization Method
5.	Period Depreciation/ Amortization is to Commence
6.	Depreciation/ Amortization Adjustment Value 
7.	Beginning Value of Depreciation/ Amortization Period
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Generates depreciation projections
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Creates what-if scenarios to project depreciation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset Disposal
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allow for the creation of detailed retirement records in relation to an asset, including;
· sales price.
· disposal date
· method of sale, disposal, write-off, scrap etc.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to track asset disposal
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to calculate gains/losses (re: disposal, scrap)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Partial disposal of assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Miscellaneous Features
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must have the facility to group assets by asset category or asset class.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system to allow to load asset data:
1.	on–line (directly in an integrated module)
2.	in batch mode by loading interface files created by other systems
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should allow setting up of asset templates to assist in setting up new assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system to allow entering memorandum type assets that will not result in depreciation charges or generate accounting entries but will be available for inquiry and reporting.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The definition of fiscal year, depreciation calendar must be flexible.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should provide transactions for:
1.	disposal of an asset
2.	disposal of part of an asset
3.	retirement and reinstatement of assets fully or partially
4.	transfer assets to another unit or person within GFC or to an organization outside of GCF 
5.	transfer part of an asset to another organization unit or person withing GFC or to an organization out of GCF
6.	merging two assets into one
7.	revaluation of assets
8.	depreciation of assets 
9.	reclassification of assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system should be able to reverse an asset disposal or transfer transaction.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The Asset Management Module must be integrated with the other modules.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must be able to exchange data with ServiceNow IT Asset Management
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The asset system must support asset counts and recording of asset count results, including specific reports structured to support asset counting and reporting thereon.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fixed Asset Accounting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Offers both "book" and "tax" depreciation calculation methods
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatically makes the required depreciation/amortization General Ledger entries at the end of each accounting period
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides the ability to track non-depreciating assets, including expensed items
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides the ability to define asset categories.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Manages compliance issues (internal, external).
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The system must be able to hold assets for more than one organization (eg headquarters and regional offices).
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System must provide on–line inquiry and reporting facilities.
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	The application should be capable of producing the following reports:
1.	Asset Code listing
2.	Asset Register Details
3.	Assets listing:
· by asset type
· by location
· by age
· by vendor
· by value
· by condition
· by Custodian
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset depreciation schedule
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset revaluation report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Monthly asset acquisition, transfer, disposal, write–off report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset history
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Audit Trail
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fully depreciated assets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals detail (analysis of all assets disposed in reporting period)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation posting audit report
	M
	
	
	
	
	


Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0




2.9. Technical Requirements

The GFMS technical requirements are based on ‘cloud’ hosted solution for ‘software as a service’ (SaaS) and, if required, ‘platform as a service’ products.  



	ID
	2.9 Technical Requirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Architecture: Data Integration Technologies
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Data Management Options
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Relational database design
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Normalized tables
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	SQL APIs for calls or data requests
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multi-RDBMS portability
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transaction tracking system
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Replicates database master files, fields, and structures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Supports Disaster Recovery Institute procedures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Database Gateway Options
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed: eg Microsoft SQL Server, Oracle, MySQL, PostgreSQL
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Server/Host Relational DBMS Options
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed: eg Microsoft SQL Server, Oracle, MySQL, PostgreSQL
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Metadata Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Maintain basic data models
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Storage of metadata model/global data dictionary for any applications or data sources
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Include data in the interrelationship details, regardless of data formats
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Includes data description/definition language (DDL) for importing, editing, printing, and generating DBMS data structures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Common relational model for sharing data across multiple databases
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interface to relational database structures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interface to system management or network configurator for automatic job execution
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-operational data warehousing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Logical Repository Model
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	House system design criteria, database structures, data element links, and interrelationships
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Combine procedural and object-oriented components
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capture complex relationships between system components
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Unify and reconcile enterprise data within and across all applications and platforms
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Define structure of distributed databases and data stores
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Define network components and interrelationships in enterprise of a distributed application infrastructure
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Include inventory of hardware configurations
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Identify hardware upgrade requirements and manage the upgrade/distribution process
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Repository Metadata Tools
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tool for modeling metadata (information about data, its structure, and where it is stored)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tools for analyzing source data, modeling target data structures, and storing information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Source code analyzers for documenting program interdependencies and separating application logic from core data structures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Map source/host application data to data elements in an open system environment for coexistence, batch extraction, or system migration
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Repository User Interface
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Uses meaningful terms and descriptions rather than data-schema terms and abbreviations
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Central point of reference for retrieving and controlling enterprise information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Concurrent access to the data with data locking and check-in and check-out integrity mechanisms
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Views information in the repository by using a browse feature
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Guide feature identifies what data is available and where it is used
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Access to business rules and predefined queries for decision support
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Windows-based end user query and reporting tools
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Combines information from different databases or data sources in one query or report
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-operational Data Warehousing
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	End user database environment designed for "what-if" modifications and queries
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Denormalized read-only database tables
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Data effectivity rating
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Data element time-sensitivity analysis
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	SQL report writer query access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	External data warehousing tools and databases
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Messaging Protocols
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Remote Procedure Calls (RPC) Options
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed: eg Asynchronous RPC, Synchronous RPC
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Message Oriented Middleware
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed: 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	APIs
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Device Interfaces
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Device Interface Management
Standard Device Interface Protocols
Input Device Options
To be confirmed:
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Architectural Foundation
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System Defaults and Parameters
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Generalized codes validation tables
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Standard messages and reason codes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Customized help windows
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Company-specific field help
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Security by user ID, password, and user group
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User menus
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Operating system command options
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Database dump/load
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Archive history file reload
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Master file audit reporting
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Scroll and keyword search of displayed reports
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	System cross-reference of files, fields, programs, menus, and messages
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multiple printer assignment to users and to functions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Bar code control character sequences for printing preformatted documents
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Web Enablement
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Degree of Web Enablement
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Intranet capabilities
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Extranet capabilities
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Connects multiple sites and the extended enterprise using private lines or the Internet or intranet
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lookups processed online occur in real time
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Browses processed online occur in real time
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Data validation processed online occurs in real time
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transactions processed online occur in real time
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides information on demand
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web Interface
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Open database structures permits user or third party to write Web enabler
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	API program interface
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tool to build interface
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pre-configured screens
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Third party tool to build interface
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Third party tools for drag-and-drop creation of interface
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Built-in tool for drag and drop web page design
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Administration tool kit
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Setup tool kit
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Uses plug-ins, helper applications, and other existing off-the-shelf tools
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Customization and tailoring capabilities
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	API configuration tool
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web Forms
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Template extends basic HTML with SQL functions
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User-friendly control features
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Template generates web form
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Drag and drop to create web form
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Form creation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Form entry validation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Rich formatting functions for plain text, HTML text, or URL strings
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Templates include cookie, session, query, shopping, and transaction features
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Form modification and customization
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Functionality
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Dynamic, embedded URL support
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reference resolution
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Where-used queries
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Record creation
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Record update/modify
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Promotions and approvals
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Check-ins and check-out files
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Attaches references
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reads and writes or modifies data at the browser level
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Manages query results from within the application
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Robust data type sets
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Dynamic SQL statements from all form inputs, URL strings, and environment
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	High-volume, online transaction processing
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Function for generating e-mail, based on HTML form input
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User-defined procedures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Both browser and non-browser access via TCP
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Simultaneous access to heterogeneous databases
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deploys across multiple platforms
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Message-based communication between business systems (using EDI or other document formats)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Integrates application and desktop applications
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	HTML push technology
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Intuitive drag-and-drop tool for accessing ad hoc database information
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web Security: Security Levels
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Base product security (the level of security supplied by vendor API)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Encryption (SSL 3.0)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Encryption for password transmission
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Encryption for data transmission
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cookies (to preserve state between successive pages or sessions)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web Security: Security Functions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	CORBA access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accepts logins
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Routes connections to other systems or hubs
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Browser requests
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Remote agent for database access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Moves results from one database to another database
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Communicates with remote agents and other hubs
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers queries from agent to agent
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Merges data from multiple sources
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Communicates with other middleware
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Time data sequence number in each transaction
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web Security: Security Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Role or task-based security scheme for individual users
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Coordinates Internet server security with database security
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	On-spot security management
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Administration tools
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tools provided to manage access
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Administrative monitoring
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Point and click security setup
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Creates transaction log
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reads, writes, and deletes permissions at the record or row level
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User authentication applied at data level
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Session management tools
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Mobile Options
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Delivers alerts through mobile messaging techniques (e.g. SMS or app-centric social media)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multimode access and delivery (e.g., access via voice, deliver on wireless)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Manages user access and security with logons and passwords
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Supports over 30 concurrent users
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatically recognizes handheld device type, so content displayed is optimized for each type of device
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of data storage in device or remotely
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Synchronization between the offline and the online or on-premise systems
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Content is encrypted and keyed to each device using a unique device ID
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Integrates with an external application or can be used as a stand alone application
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Provides full data tracking with automatic synchronization
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Organizational Structure
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Graphical display of entities, business units, organizational units, departments, warehouses, employee groups, and employees
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Graphical editor tool for structuring organizational connections
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hierarchical connections between organizational groups
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hierarchical connections between organizational groups and external processes, sources, and systems
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Linkage of business procedures with organizational groups or individuals
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hierarchical link of organizational or supply chain processes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Linkage of manual processes and external processes or systems with groups or individuals
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Application Security
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Database-level security
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Program-level security
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multilevel access passwords
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User authentication
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Digital signatures
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User, object, and method access control
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Encrypting or decrypting of messages
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architecture: Multisite Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multiple date formats including month/day/year, day/month/year, and year/month/day
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Site-specific calendars
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User Interface
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Configurable menus
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Drag-and-place menus per user
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Configurable user screens
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	One-time only screen configuration
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Configuration can be saved as user default screen
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Configurable browse toolbars and options
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Configurable functions and process activities
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Platforms: Servers
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Platforms: Database
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Platforms: Workstation OS
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed: Microsoft Windows, Mac OS
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Platforms: Web Browser
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Chrome
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Firefox
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Internet Explorer
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Opera
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Safari
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other Web browser
	D
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Platforms: Mobile OS
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	To be confirmed
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Reports available online
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Local report printing (not centralized printing and distribution)
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ad hoc inquiry capability from within the ERP product
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Active or inactive status
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Automatically rank search results in order of relevance based on required or optional criteria and weighting factors
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Natural-language queries/search
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Report libraries
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Allows full text searches based on metadata attributes
	M
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Third party reporting application integration
	M
	
	
	
	
	


Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0





2.10. Optional: Treasury Management

The Treasury Management system (TMS) handles the range of financial instruments including debt, loans, grants and guarantees.  If required, it could also handle various trade finance instruments such as Letters of Credit, export factoring, export credit etc.
As with a Cash Management module, the TMS has a gateway to the SWIFT network for the exchange of financial information and instructions with GCF’s banks. The TMS would be populated with data from the FAAs, allowing it to generate schedules of disbursements and receipts. This would permit the various transactions to originate from GCF, rather than the AE. All instructions relating to financial transactions would be sent securely over the SWIFT network.
It can also handle real-time cash management to ensure that appropriate funding is always available to meet emerging demands. As part of an ERP, the TMS can forecast cash flows over various user selected timeframes, through its integration with the AR and AP modules and access to bank account balances.
The proposed requirements[footnoteRef:2] cover a broader range of treasury management activities in order to allow flexibility for the future evolution of GCF’s treasury function.  This may include more activities and tasks being undertaken by GCF and fewer undertaken through a third party provider.  This also considers the potential development of GCF’s financial instruments and products during the next 5-10 years. [2:  Derived from GCF and AARC inputs and TMS Treasury Systems requirements checklist.] 

Within GCF, the Accounting and Finance Team and the Treasury Specialist will use the system according to the assignment of responsibilities in the table below.
	No
	Accounting & Finance
	Treasury

	1
	 
	Cash & Liquidity Management:
· Cash visibility, management & forecasting
· Advanced forecasting incl scenarios and stress testing
· In-house banking

	2
	Financial transactions:
· Debt position keeping
· Investment position keeping
· Including loan disbursement/payment and repayment schedules
	Financial transactions:
· FX position keeping

	3
	Bank and payment management:
· Bank account management
· Payment management 
· Fraud detection and sanction screening
	 

	4
	Risk management:
· Valuation and accounting
	Risk management:
· Balance sheet exposure management






	ID
	2.10. Optional: Treasury ManagementRequirements
	Mandatory (M) / Desirable (D)
	OOB
	EXT
	3RD 
	CUST
	NS

	
	Business requirements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multicurrency: multiple currency disbursements including automatically calculate both realized and unrealized forex losses on multi-currency disbursements.
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Multi-counterparty for booking transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Bank management including functionality for local currency disbursements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Tiered Portfolio/Sub-Portfolio/Contract Type Hierarchy for booking transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to upload all relevant market rates
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Easy to use business day calendar
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Include all market standard interest rate calculation rules and conventions:
·  Day Count Conventions
·  Business Day Conventions
·  Interest Calculation Rules
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Generic Interfacing Facility for Bank EB Systems, ERPs and Market Rate Providers
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Comprehensive and flexible field sensitive 'search' functionality to find contracts/transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Facility to record/access all organizational details for internal/external organization incl eg 
· Phone
· Email
· Address
· Names/Titles
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Web-enabled allowing users secure, remote access
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Role-based authorization for internal staff
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Confirmed/Unconfirmed Status on all transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User Configurable Contract Templates and Input Defaults for ease of input
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Open to Interface with SWIFT for FileAct and FIN messaging
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Audit trail on all transactions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Compliance
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability flexibly to create Compliance Tasks
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to schedule tasks by:
· date
· counterparty
· contract
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to monitor/report task completion
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Counterparty/Contract Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to save documents online with easy access to users, e.g.
· Loan/Other Agreements
· Bank account mandates
· List of Signatories
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deal/Contract booking
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Money Market
· Current/call accounts
· Deposits
· Deposit rollover/linking
· Interest-Bearing Instruments
· Discounting Instruments
· Money Market Funds
· Repos
· Ability to book any/all as Asset or Liability
· Multicurrency for each of the above
· Ability to Revalue to Base Currency
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Foreign Exchange including risk management and hedging
· Spot
· Forward
· Ability to Mature/ Part Mature/ Roll FX contracts
· Swap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital Market
· Bonds
· Loans with linked multiple drawings
· Various Amortising Profiles, including:
· Bullet
· Even
· Percentage Based of Original
· Percentage Based of Outstanding
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Instruments with various interest rates requirements, including:
· Fixed-Rate
· Floating-Rate
· Zero-Coupon
· Discounted
· Margins, including Step-Up/Down
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Instruments with various Fee requirements, including:
· Commitment Fee
· Utilisation Fee
· Annual Fee
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Instruments with different calculation bases, including:
· Flat Fee
· Percentage Based on Outstanding
· Percentage Based on Original
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Indexed/inflation Linked Instruments
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Management of guarantee instruments
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Direct equities including management of equity closures:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Guaranteed/Contingent Liabilities 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Ability to book any/all as Asset or Liability
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Derivatives:
· Interest Rate Swaps
· Cross Currency Swaps
· Swap Early Termination
· Swaptions
· forward rate agreement (FRAs)
· Interest Rate Caps/Floors/Collars
· Currency Options
· Ability to link Hedge Contracts to underlying Exposures
· Ability to monitor Hedge Effectiveness
· Ability to book transactions with both internal and external counterparties
· Collateral Management for Collateralised Contracts including:
· Collateral Rules Definition
· Collateral requirements calculation
· Business Process for Collateral/Margin Management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Permitted Counterparties/Contracts/Limits
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Ability to authorise Counterparties
· Ability to authorise Permitted Contracts
· Ability to authorise Internal Dealers
· Ability to set and monitor the various limits, including:
· Counterparty Limit
· Contract Type Limit
· Tenor Limit
· Daily Settlement
· Ability to adjust for Currency Volatility on Limit Consumption
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Market Rates
· Ability to upload all relevant Market Rates/Prices including:
· FX
· Interest Rate
· Bond
· Index Value
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Mark-to-Market (MtM)/Revaluations
· Ability to Mark-to-Market all contracts/transactions in real-time based on the latest market rates
· Multi-curve functionality with configurable yield curve build
· Flexibility to assign different curse different types of contracts
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Scenario Analyses
· Ability to run stress testing scenarios 
· Ability to add “what-if” transactions
· Ability to add “what-if” market rates
· Ability to “shock” existing market rates and yield curves
· Ability to use full reporting to analyse these scenarios
· Advanced forecasting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Settlements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Segregated confirmation for all contract types:
· by hard copy
· electronic
· by phone
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	A segregated, automated payment process with inbuilt controls and automated assignment:
· by Counterparty
· by Currency
· by Contract Type
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liquidity management
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to define “Liquidity Rank” per type of contract
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to report liquidity ladders by Liquidity Rank
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Asset/Liability Gap Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Facility Undrawn Balance Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to define Accounting Rules in relation to FX Rates for Translation/Revaluations
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	User flexibility to define all necessary rules, e.g.:
· Account from Deal Date or Cash Flow Date
· Reverse Accruals on First Day or Last Day of Next Period
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of disbursement schedules, forecasting and processing of project disbursement:  
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of Loan Fee and Repayment Schedules and closures
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of Loans which are 'on lend' through sub-agreements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to automatically generate account postings for:
· Treasury Receipts/Payments for Interest, Fees and Principal
· Accruals/Prepayments on booked Treasury transactions
· Revaluations of Treasury contracts
· Account Reclassifications based e.g. on being <12m to maturity
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Support valuation of investments by defining valuation parameters:
· Loans: calculate loans fair value using discounted cashflow method 
· Direct equities 
· Guarantees
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	· Loss Provisioning: support adherence to IFRS 9 including loss provisioning 
· Expected Credit Losses (ECL) calculation
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Analyses/Reporting
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	A comprehensive menu of Treasury standard reports
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Comprehensive filters available to users to tailor their reports to e.g.
· certain contract types
· selected date ranges
· selected “portfolios” or books
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ability to report on “all” or sub-portfolios
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Flexible report outputs, including screen, HTML and PDF
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Facility to export directly to Excel
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Graphical reporting where logical to use
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Treasury dashboard is available for key metrics/position monitoring and custom reports such as foreign exchange rates and, in due course ‘value at risk’
	
	
	
	
	
	




Legend:
	OOB
	requirement is provided standard Out-of-the-Box including standard modifications (screen configurations, reports, GUI tailoring, etc)
	4 points

	EXT
	requirement is available through ‘native’ add-on / bolt-on to the original product at additional cost including Platform as a Service (PaaS)
	3 points

	3RD
	requirement is available through integration with 3rd-party software
	2 points

	CUS
	requirement is available through customization of the standard solution (changes to source code)
	1 point

	NS
	Requirement is not currently available – may be on the solution roadmap for the foreseeable future.
	0
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